EASTERN UNIVERSITY

Qualtrics User Manual

Compiled by Andrew Wakiro, Research Assistant 1/3/2013

The contents of this user manual are extracted from the "Get Help" menu of the Qualtrics software program

Contents

To Create a Survey:	3
Quick Survey Builder	3
Copy an existing survey	4
Use the Survey Library	5
Create a Question	7
To apply a question type:	8
To Format Questions:	
Change Item Type	11
Choices	12
Question-Type Specific Options	13
Display Logic on questions	14
Display Logic on answer choices	17
Edit Display Logic	19
Validation Options	21
Validation Types	21
To Add a Page Break between questions:	21
To set up Skip Logic:	24
Edit Survey	26
In the Look and Feel you can:	26
Survey Options	26
Print Survey	27
Spell Check	27
Preview Survey	27
Distribute Survey	27
Activate your survey	27
Send a survey through Email Survey	
Create a new Panel	
View Results	
To access and create Reports:	

	To View Responses:	38
	Download Data	39
	Create a new Cross Tabulation	41
Li	brary	43
	Saving a Survey to the Library	43
	Using a Survey from the Library	43
	Using a Question from the Library	43
	The Qualtrics Library	43
	Group Library	43

To Create a Survey:

- 1. Click on the **Create Survey** tab. Alternatively, click the **Create Survey** button in the My Surveys tab if you are accessing your account for the first time.
- 2. On the next screen, select one of the following options: Quick Survey Builder, Create from Copy, or Survey Library.

How do you want to build your survey?
Build Burry Builder
The state of the s

Quick Survey Builder

The Quick Survey Builder is the fastest way to start editing your survey.

1. Select Quick Survey Builder.

н	ow do you want to i	build your survey?		
		Duick Survey Builder	1	
	- (Desire for the set of		
				-
				THE PART OF
	Own to	m Capy	-	nji Lilomiy

2. In the box that appears, **name your survey** and **select a folder** to save it in. If you don't have a folder you would like to save it in, leave this part

blank. You can assign a folder later, if needed.

Create a New Sur	ry builder to accelerate your survey creation and start gathering results
Survey Name Folder	Demo Training
	X Cancel V Create Survey
Click to	Continue 🔿

3. Finish by clicking **Create Survey**.

	Try our survey	in and start gathering results?
H	Create a New Surv	vey
	Survey Name	Demo
ľ	Folder	Training
		X Cancel Create Survey
ľ		
	Click to C	iontinue 🐡

Copy an existing survey

The **Create From Copy** option allows you to create a new survey based upon an existing survey within your personal account.

- 1. Now do you want to build your survey?
- 2. Specify a new name, and the folder it belongs in, if desired.

Create from Copy	,
Survey to copy:	demo 👻
New survey name: Folder	demo test
	X Cancel V Create from Copy
Click to C	ontinue 💠 📴

3. Finish by clicking the **Create From Copy** button.

reate from Copy	1
Survey to copy:	demo 🝷
New survey name: Folder	demo - Copy
	X Cancel Create from Cop

Use the Survey Library

The **Survey Library**option allows you to copy a survey from a library and use it as a template for your new survey. The Qualtrics Library contains hundreds of ready-to-use surveys.

- 2. Choose the library from which you would like to pull the survey. Select **My Library** if you would like to choose one of your own surveys, or select the **Global Library** if you would like to select a Qualtrics survey.

Create from Survey Library	/
	My Library: Qualtrics University
Please select a library:	Cobal Ubrary, Qualtrics Ubrary
Category:	
Survey:	
Enter the new survey nam	e and the destination account below:
New survey name:	
Folder:	

3. Specify the category, if applicable, then the specific survey you would like to copy.



4. Specify a new name, the folder the survey belongs in and the account the survey will be copied to.

Create from Survey Library	1	
Please select a library:	Global Library: Qualtrics Library	:)
Category:	Community	4
Survey:	Mentoring Application Survey	
Enter the new survey name	e and the destination account below:	
New survey name:	Mentoring Application Survey - Copy	
Folder:	Demo	-

5. Finish up by clicking Create Survey.

Please select a library: Global Library: Qualtrics Library	Please select a library:
Category: Community	Category:
Survey: Mentoring Application Survey	Survey:
the new survey name and the destination account below:	ter the new survey name
New survey name: Mentoring Application Survey - Copy	New survey name:
Folder: Demo	Folder:
the new survey name and the destination account below: New survey name: Mentoring Application Survey - Copy Folder: Demo	ter the new survey name New survey name: Folder:

Create a Question

1. Click on the **Create a New Item** button ³ at the bottom of a question block. A multiple choice question will be inserted into your survey.

estion Block		
Roh Tast Editor. Parel Tast.		Normal View 1/1746, View
Click to write the question text		
Click to write Choice 1		
Click to write Choice 2		
Click to write Choice 3		
	Copy Items From	Create a New Item
		0

Alternatively, hover over any question and click one of the **green plus** buttons ⁽²⁾ that appear to the right to add a question directly above or below the existing question.

2. Use the question pane to the right to change the question type or change the question settings.



To apply a question type:

- 1. Click on the question you would like to change.
- 2. Click on the green **Change Item Type** box in the question menu bar to the right of the selected question.

demo		Autor Choice
Default Qu	estion Block	0 3 0 Cat Map
Q1 D	Thank you for participating in our survey. This survey will take you no more than 10 minutes to complete.	Automatic Chokee Answers Single Answer Multiple Answer
Q2 🗹	Click to write the question text Click to write Choice 1 Click to write Choice 2 Click to write Choice 3	More Preation Wetrical Horizontal More Velication Options Croce Response +
Q3 🗆	Please rank the following according to your level of preference:	Validation Type (*) None Custom Validation Add Page Break
	tem 2	Add Disolay Logic Add Skip Logic

3. A list of question types will be shown to you in the **Change Item Types** drop-down. Select a question type or click on **Show All Question Types** to see all of the question type variations.

		Buck Options +	Diargo Iten Type Budgis Choice
Change Item Type		Used	aveelon from the Library
Example Area What is the most frequent reason why people call your technical support department?		Multiple Choice	음음: Maria Table
	A	Text Entry	A Test/Drame
	÷	Constant Stars	+
	ł	Rank Onder	© € Sala by Sala €)0
		Pisk, Group, and Rank	₩ Drit Dawn
	2	Post Sport	é
	0		III Nea His Question
		Show ALG.	entor.Tupes

4. After selecting the question type, use the question options bar to the right to customize the question.

demo		Charge Ren Type
v Default	Question Block	Ack Optime +
Q1 0	Thank you for participating in our survey. This survey will take you no more than 15 minutes to complete.	Bingle Line Multi Line Essay Text Box From Passwort
02 E	Click to write the question text	Validation Optime Porce Response = Validate: Type Phone None
Q3 🗆	Phase rank the following according to your level of preference:	O Maximum Length Ochanadar Range Ochanadar Nalidasian Ocunion Validasian Ocunion Validasian
	Sem 2	Add District Logis

Warning: If you've already begun collecting responses, changing your question type could result in the loss of collected data.

More Information

<u>Tips</u>

- The **Show All Question Types** option is available at the bottom of the **Question Types menu** and will display the variations of each question type available.
- If you've already begun collecting responses, changing your question type could result in the loss of collected data.

To Format Questions:

1. Select the question you would like to format and the blue Question Pane will come up automatically on the right-hand side.



2. Format your question using the following Question Pane options:

Change Item Type

The green **Change Item Type** button allows you to change the type of question being used. Click it to see the different options available. Visit the <u>Question Types Guide</u> for more details about each question type.

		Back Options	A Margan Croses
	Change Item Type	Unit	Avention from the Library
Example Area		C Multiple Chains	
What best describes your living situation?		8	*11
() Rent		AT het Dray	A Test / Draphic
Own Uve with Panents / Family		Constant Burn	+
		- Rank Order	1 Berly Ber
		Pia, Group, and Rack	W Dit Dee
		The second	é metho
		0	E Mata Info Guardi

Choices

In the **Choices** section, you have the option to add or remove answer choices by clicking on the **plus** or **minus** buttons beneath the green bar.



• **Edit Multiple** allows you to paste a list of answer choices or statements into the question. This is very useful if you have a question with a large list of choices or statements.



• Automatic Choices will recognize what you've entered into your question text and populate the choices with a scale that can be formatted as needed. Click the **plus** or **minus** buttons to change your automatic scale to something different, like a 7-point scale to a 5-point scale, and vice versa.

	Change New Type	
Reverse Order	Multiple Choice	
Disagree - Agree Disagree - Agree Disatisfied - Satisfied de - Disatisfied - Disatisfied de - Disatisfied - Disatisfied - Disatisfied de - Disatisfied - Disatisfied - Disatisfied - Disatisfied de - Disatisfied - Dis	Automatic Choices	

Question-Type Specific Options

When formatting you will observe that each question type has different formatting options in the Question Pane. Visit the <u>Question Types Guide</u> for more details.

• Answer Options allows you to choose between Single Answer, Multiple Answer, Drop-down List, Select Box, or Multiple Select Box.

•	Answers Single Answer Multiple Answer Dropdown List Select Box Multi Select Box Less
	Position

• Answer Position allows you to choose between a Vertical, Horizontal, or Column layout.



• Set Validation Options allows you to enable Force Response, which requires participant to respond to a question before moving to the next page, and **Request Response**, which notifies participant when they do not answer a question, letting them choose to move on or to respond.

	More
	Validation Options
~	Force Response
	Request Response
-	

Display Logic on questions

1. Select the question that you would like to display conditionally.

Q3 🗹	What is your age?
G	Under 18 years Click here to edit choices
Q4 🗆	Please rank the following according to your level of p
	Item 1

2. Click the **purple gear box** to the left and select **Add Display Logic**.



- 3. Set the condition that must be met for the question to display. You can set the condition based on an answer to a previous question, or based on an embedded data field, quota or panel field.
 - *Previous Question*: From the first drop-down, select **Question**. From the second drop-down, select a specific question, and from the third drop-down, select an answer choice. From the fourth drop-down, choose **selected**, **not selected**, etc.
 - *Embedded data*: In the first drop-down, select Embedded Data. In the green text box, enter an embedded data field, such as Age. In the third drop-down, select equal to. Finally, enter a value, such as 27. The question will only be displayed to respondents in your panel that have Age equal to 27.
 - *Quota*: In the first drop-down, select **Quota**. From the second drop-down, select which quota, and from the third drop-down, decide if you want to display if quota "has been met" or "not met." Please note that you must create a quota before referencing it here.

• *Panel Field*: From the first drop-down, select **Panel**. From the second drop-down, select a panel field. From the third drop-down, select **equal to**, **not equal to**, etc. Finally, enter the **panel value**.

Q8 O Which online survey tool do you use?	Change Item Type
Display Logic (Which web browser(s) do you use on a daily basis?)	
Display this Question only if the following condition is met:	
If Question V Q8 Which online survey tool do you use? V Qualtrics V Is Selected V	00
In Page	X Close Save
0 1-5 years	Position

4. Add and subtract conditions by hitting the blue + and - buttons on the right of the condition. You can use **and if** or **or if** to define multiple conditions.

Display Logic (Which web browser(s) do you use on a daily basis?)	
Display this Question only if the following condition is met:	
If Question • Q8 Which online survey tool do you use? • Quatrics • Is Selected •	00
And v Question v Select Question v	00
□ In Page	X Close Save
() 5-10 years	Vertical Vertical

5. Click **Save** to apply the logic.

Display Logic (Which web browser(s) do you use on a daily basis?)	_
Display this Question only if the following condition is met:	
If Question v Q8 Which online survey tool do you use? v Qualifics v Is Selected v	00
And * Question * Q9 For how long have you used Qualtrics? * 1-5 years * Is Selected *	00
☐ In Page	X Close Save
0 5-10 years	Vertical Horizontal

<u>Tip</u>

- If you want your question to automatically display on the same page without having to first click the Next (or ">>") button to move to the next page, click the In Page checkbox. In-Page Display Logic won't work in every situation. Qualtrics will display a message if it won't work for you.
- If respondent doesn't have JavaScript enabled, then In-Page Display Logic will just function as regular Display Logic.



Display Logic on answer choices

1. Click on the answer choice you would like to display conditionally.

Q3 🗹	Which survey software do you currently use? Qualifics Survey Professionals Surveys Z Other
Q4 D	Please rank the following according to your level of preference:

- 2. Click on the blue advanced options **drop-down menu**.
- 3. Select Add Display Logic.



4. Set the condition for displaying the answer choice as you would with regular display logic.

	Bes Opt
ng is automy.	
Display Logic (Qualifies)	
Display this choice only if the following condition is met:	
f Guesler + Cale Visit is your apr? (U.S. Census 7 Calegories) + Curder 18 years + B Not Selected +	00
	X Close 🗸 Save
•	

More Information

Edit Display Logic

• *Display Logic on Questions*: After applying Display Logic, a blue bar will appear on the question. You can still edit it by clicking the **Edit Logic** option in the blue bar and changing the condition.

Q2 🗆	What is your age?
Ľ,	Display This Question: If What is your age? (U.S. Census 7 Categories) Under 18 years is Not Selected Edit
Q3 🗹	Which survey software do you currently use?
0 +	O Qualtrics
	Survey Professionals
	O Surveys Z
	Other

• *Display Logic on Answer Choices*: After setting up Display Logic on an answer choice, a blue arrow will appear to the left of the answer choice. To edit Display Logic, select the answer choice, select the blue drop-down menu, then select **Edit Display Logic**.



<u>Tips</u>

- If you have a large amount of questions to which you will be applying the same Display Logic, you will want to use Branch Logic instead of Display Logic. Put all the questions you will be displaying conditionally into the same block and use Branch Logic in the Survey Flow to display those questions. For more information, review the tutorials on selecting multiple questions and using branches.
- You can use Display Logic to hide questions in your survey when needed. To do this, put Display Logic on the question with a condition that will never be met. So if you know the first question in the survey is always going to displayed, you can put a condition into your Display Logic that will only be met if the first question is not displayed. The condition will never be met and the question will never be displayed.

To Enable Validation:

Validation is great to use if you want to ensure that respondents cannot skip a question in your survey. Without validation, a respondent can pick and choose which questions to answer and submit a half finished survey.

It is also helpful when you want to ensure the data you collect is legitimate. An example of this is when you are collecting email addresses and you want to make sure the answers typed in by respondents are in a proper email format.

You must manually enable validation on each question you would like to validate.

- 1. Click on the question you would like to validate.
- 2. In the question options pane to the right, under Validation options, select Force Response or Request Response.
- 3. Select Validation Type if necessary.
- 4. A red box will appear next to your question indicating you have enabled validation.



Validation Options

Force Response

If force response is enabled, respondents will be forced to answer the question before they can progress to the next page of the survey. If a respondent does not answer and tries to advance, a notification will appear that indicates the question must be answered.

Request Response

If request response is enabled and a respondent does not answer the question, an alert will inform the respondent the question was not answered. The respondent will have the option to return or continue the survey. This is also called soft validation.

Validation Types

Validation types vary from question to question and can be viewed in the question options pane when a question is selected.

Custom Validation

Available with all question types. Custom Validation allows you to further customize the conditions that must be met for the validation to pass and allows you to set a custom error message to appear when the respondent does not meet the conditions.

To Add a Page Break between questions:

1. Click on the question after which you would like to add a page break.

Q1 2	Thank you for participating in our survey. This survey will take you no more than 10 minutes to complete.
Q2 🗆	What is your age?
	Under 18 years
Q3 🗆	Which survey software do you use?

2. In the question menu bar to the right, click the **Add Page Break** option. A page break will be added in between questions in your survey. The questions before the page break will be on one page and the questions after the page break will be on the next page of the survey.

	• Text
Thank you for participating in our survey. This survey will take you no more than 10 minutes to complete.	Graphic File
	Validation Type None Custom Validation
What is your age?	Add Page Break
Under 18 years 🛟	Add Dispitaly Logic
Which survey software do you use?	Move Question

3. Continue to add page breaks where you would like a new page created.

Q1 Thank you for participating in our survey. This survey will take you no more than 10 minutes to complete.	
Q2 What is your age? Under 18 years :	Add Page Break Add Display Logic Add Skip Logic Add Skip Logic Copy Question Move Question Preview Question

 If you want to put an equal amount of questions on each page of the survey but do not want to put page breaks in manually, you can click <u>Look and Feel</u> and, under the **General Tab**, specify how many questions you would like per page.

quarries	-	General	Next Button Text;
And and a second		Fonts	Back Button Text: 55
And in case		Colors	Progress Bar None
	11 A 1	Advanced	Questions Per Page:
		1	
		-	
ľ	a qualtres.	-	

More Information

<u>Tips</u>

- If you hover over the page break element, a red minus button will appear. Clicking this will delete the page break. Clicking one of the green plus buttons will add a question above or below the break.
- A page break is required for certain features to work in your survey. One of these is the <u>Piped Text</u> function. If the piped text refers to an answer in a previous question, then a page break will need to be placed between the question from which you are piping and the question to which the text is piped.

- Page breaks automatically occur between blocks and when Skip Logic or Display Logic are used.
- The timing question type times how long participants spend on a page and therefore has to be on the same page as the questions it is timing. If you are using timing questions, do not set automatic page breaks in Survey Options. Also, do not put a page break between the timing question and the questions you are wanting to time. For more information, view <u>Timing</u> in the question type guide.

To set up Skip Logic:

1. Select the question you will be skipping from.



2. Click on the **purple gear box** to the left of the question and select **Add Skip Logic**.



3. Using the drop-downs, set up the condition that will trigger the Skip Logic and specify where you would like the respondent to be sent. This could be to another question within the block or directly to the end of the block or survey.

	Linder Lill years
Q3 🗹	Which survey software do you currently use?
0 -	O Qualifics
	() Survey Professionals
	O Surveys Z
	O Other
ł	Please rank the following according to your level of pref Please rank the following according to your level of pref End of Survey
Q4 🗆	Please rank the following according to your level of preference:
	lan 1
	ham 2

4. When setting the condition, you can choose to skip respondents based on whether a specific answer choice is Selected, Not Selected, Displayed, or Not Displayed.

Q3 🗹	Which survey software do you currently use?						
0 -	O Qualitios						
	Survey Professionals						
	Surveys Z						
	() Other						
_							
1	I Qualifics Selected . Then Skip To End of Block Done						
. * 1	Not Selec						
	Not Displayed						
Q4 U	Please rank the following according to your level of preference:						
	Bern 1						
	Rem 2						
	10011 2						

5. When finished, click **Done**.

Q3 🗹	Which survey software do you currently use?
0 -	O Qualifics
	O Survey Professionals
	O Surveys Z
	Other
Ž	Qualtrics : In Selected : Then Skip To End of Nock Dogs
Q4 🗆	Please rank the following according to your level of preference:
	lam 1
	ltem 2

More Information

<u>Tips</u>

- To edit existing logic, click the text in your Skip Logic.
- You can add as many Skip Logic conditions to a question as you'd like. The different skips will be color coordinated.
- Remember to test out your logic.

Edit Survey

In the Look and Feel you can:

- Change the Skin (template) of your survey
- Add a progress bar and other general tools
- Customize the font style
- Customize the color scheme
- Add a Header or Footer
- Alter how questions are displayed
- Edit CSS

Survey Options

The Survey Options icon is found in the navigation bar in the Edit Survey tab. Click on **Survey Options** to edit your survey settings. The most common settings are in place by default. Be sure to double check the options to make sure they fit your needs.

The Survey Options menu is divided into six areas:

Survey Experience Survey Protection Survey Termination Inactive Surveys Partial Completion Response Set

Print Survey

A Print Survey button is available in the navigation bar under the Edit Survey tab. Use this button to create a physical copy of your survey or to print to pdf. Clicking Print Survey will open a new window of a printable version of the survey, as well as the print survey dialog. You can also download a document of your survey in the Microsoft Word .docx format (see below) and print from Word.

Spell Check

Qualtrics provides simple and accurate spell check in the Edit Surveys tab. The Spell Check is located on the gray toolbar in the Edit Surveys tab.

Preview Survey

The "Preview Survey" option on the Edit Survey page will allow you to see and take the survey as if you were a respondent. You can also use the Test Survey option (found under Advanced Options) to generate test results. The Test Survey option will also alert you if there are any problems with the logic in your survey.

Distribute Survey

Activate your survey

Activating your survey allows you to begin collecting survey responses. By default, any survey you create is inactive. This keeps respondents from taking the survey before it is finished and ensures you won't collect any invalid data or release an unfinished survey.

Do not activate your survey until you are ready to collect responses.

1. On the My Surveys page, click the check box on the left side of the survey name. The



2. On the **Distribute Survey** page, click the link that says **Activate your survey to collect responses**. The anonymous survey link will then be available to you.

~~~ E8	Burvey Distribute Survey View Hasars Mas Library Parents	
ey Enul	Stillstory Social Mode In-Page Proper Website Feedback Survey Director Proview Survey	
	Need more respondents? Use the Queltrics Panel. Click here to get a quote.	
		Curren
tive		
	Activate your survey to collect responses ¢	
	6	
	Your survey is inactive for the following reasons:	
	<ul> <li>Quality Control The servery cannot be laken by recipients and allows you to review it before it can be taken.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Ease of Building in "Talt Durvey" you have access to quick and simple build modes that are not available with active surveys.</li> </ul>	
-	Data Integrity	

It's the easiest way to distribute a survey: a simple, anonymous link that can be taken by anyone. You can:

- Send it out with your personal email.
- Post it on a web page.
- Use social media to distribute it.

Send a survey through Email Survey

1. Go to the **Distribute Survey** tab.

2. Click on the **Email Survey** icon.

Q.	altrics					
Wy Surveys	Create Survey	EditSurvey	Distribute Surv	View Res.	ns Polis Libr	ery Panels
Survey Lat	EmailSurvey	Enal History	Social Media	In-Page Populo	Waba Te Feedback	Survey D
			Need more res	pondents? Use t	he Queltrice Pariel. S	ilick here to ge
Get.Help	et a Questing					
Demo Su	rvey					

3. Click on the **"To:"** drop-down menu to select who should receive the survey.

My Surveys	Create Burvey	EditSurvey	Distribute Sun	Vew Res	its Polis Library	Panels	
5urvey Link	2 Email Survey	Creal Hotory	Social Media	In-Page Popup	Website Freebock	Survey Director	Preview
			Need more re	spondents? Use t	he Qualtrics Panel. <u>CR</u>	ik here to get a quote.	
Get Help	Aak a Guestion						c
Demo Se	urvey						
To:	Enter Email	$\geq$					
Wher	Use Email Addre My Library: Qual	sses From a Library Hos University					
Messag	e:						
	From Name:	Qualitrics University					

- 4. Choose to Enter Email Addresses manually, or select a panel from your library.
- 5. If using a panel, select **My Library** or **Group Library**.
- 6. Choose to create a **New Panel** or select an existing panel. Visit the <u>Build a Panel</u> page to learn more about Panels.

o: [				
	Please Select *		-	
	Enter Email Ad	dresses		
Albert	Use Email Add	resses From a Library		
wner	My Library: Que	itrics University		
lessa	ge:		New Panel	
			Focus Group	
	From Name:	Qualitics University	Focus Group 2	
Reply-1	To Email Address:	QUni@qualtrics.com		
	Subject	Focus Group 1 Survey		

7. If using an existing panel, choose whether to Select the Entire Panel, Select a Panel Sample, or Select an Individual from the panel.

To:	Please Select *			
	Enter Email Ad	dresses		
Wher	Use Email Addresses From a Library			
	My Library: Qu	ibics University	•	1
Message:			New Panel	1
	Ener Viener	Outpice University	Focus Group	•
Rephy-1	To Email Address:	GUni@gualitics.com	Focus Group 2	Select Entre Panel
	Subject	Focus Group 1 Survey		Select a Panel Semple
				Select an Individual Smith, John - junith@test.com

8. Next, choose **When** to send your survey. By default, it will be sent 1 hour from when you schedule the mailing.

Demo Sur	vey	
To: Foou	s Group + View 2 member	
When:	Send in 1 hour +	
Messag	Send in 1 hour	
Reply-To	Send in 1 day Send in 3 days	
Custome	Send in 14 days Send in 28 days	
😧 (a)	Custom	(*) 新書 著一体 詳一語 计图 Source

9. In the Message section, enter a **From Name**, **Reply-To Email Address**, and **Subject** for your email.

Vhen:	Send in 1 hour	•	
lessage			
	From Name:	Qualtrics University	
Reply-To E	mail Address:	QUni@qualtrics.com	
	Subject	Focus Group 1 Survey	

10. You will see that the survey link is automatically inserted into the message box. Do not delete it. Type an email message into the <u>Rich Text Editor</u> incorporating the link, or click

to Load a Saved Message.

() (a) (a)			1 1 1 1 1		6	: =	=	1	津	ŧ
∠r : Font		* Size			. 1	Ū	~	×	: *	• 1
Follow this	ink to the S	International Statements					٦.			
Follow this   \${I://Survey!	ink to the Su .ink?d=Take	urvey: the Surve	y}				]			
Follow this I \${1://SurveyL Or copy and \${1://SurveyL	ink to the Su ink?d=Take paste the U JRL}	urvey: the Surve RL below	into yo	our intern	et bro	wser:				

- 11. If you've created a new email message, click the green **Save** button.
- 12. Once the mailing is ready to be sent, click **Send Now** or **Schedule Mailing**.

Message:		
From Name:	Qualifies University	
Reply-To Email Address:	GUN@qualities.com	
Subject	Facus Strup 1 Survey	
Evolution UST INVITE +		tion territor.
0 N 2 R 0 0	] == 0 🍓   0 0   第 第 第   注 第   注 臣   回 texte	
0 1m	• See • B Z B X x' 😤• 🗄•	
Follow this link to the Surv S(USurveyLink?d=Take the	erc storegj	
Or copy and paste the URL B(UBurveyURL)	below into your internet browser:	
False Te init is set out of this ROUGHCUL HEND Disk term in	n enels: unadestel	
tedy p		
		× .
🗸 Send Test Email 🛛	Mvshoed Delions	V Schegule Mailing

## **Create a new Panel**

1. Go to the **Panels** tab and click the green **Create New Panel** button.

Polis Library Panels	
	Current Panel Library: My Panels: Qualtrics University
	Create New Panel
	Q, Panel
	Panel Actions

- 2. Give your panel a **Panel Name**.
- 3. If desired, give your panel a **Destination Category**.

### 4. Click Create.

Create New Par	nel
Panel Name	Focus Group 3
Destination Category	Research 1
	X Cancel
	Jun 23, 2011 3:01PM

5. Choose how you would like to import panel members: Add Panel Members using a web-based form, Import From a File to upload a spreadsheet of members, or Import From a Survey to use previous survey responses to build your panel.

Add Panel Members	Import From a File	Import From a Survey
instantly add panel members to your panel with this easy to use form.	Import panel members right from an Excel file saved on your computer.	Easily import panel members from people who have already taken a survey.
	1	1
Click to Continue 📫	Cilck to Continue 🔅	Click to Continue 📫

## Manually add members to your Panel

1. Follow the steps for **Create New Panel**, and select to **Add Panel Members** manually.



2. In the form that appears, fill in the Email, First Name, and Last Name for your panel members. Make sure that you don't have white space before or after the inserted text.

Email	First Name	Last Name	00
marys@company.com	Mary	Smith (	

3. If needed, click the gray **Plus Sign** to add additional fields to your panel, including an **External Data Reference**, the participant's **Language**, or any other **Embedded Data** field. Customize the names of your Embedded Data fields by clicking on the **field name**.

First Name	Last Name	External Data Reference	Language	00
Mary Smith				{d}

4. Click Save.

Import panel members from a file

1. Follow the steps for Create New Panel and select to Import From a File section.



2. Create a spreadsheet in Excel or any other database program. Download the **Example Document** to learn how to format the file. The File must contain one column with the

header FirstName, one column with the header LastName, one column with the header Email, and if needed, additional columns for any other data (embedded data) you would like to have saved in the panel. Click <u>here</u> to jump down to QTips for information on importing the panel members' Language codes.

WARNING: When you add embedded data to your panel, this extra information will be attached to the responses of your panelists. Note that to see this embedded data in your reports you must go into the Survey Flow of your survey and add in embedded data elements for the embedded data columns. Also, be aware that if you delete your panel after collecting responses, the embedded data will also be deleted and will no longer be attached to the responses from the panel.



- 3. Build your file. Add panel members to your spreadsheet, with one row for each panel member.
- 4. In the File menu, select **Save As**.

													_
	A1		;	0	💿 💿 f 🗴 🖉 FirstName								
1	A		В			C		D	E		F		
1	FirstName	Last	Nar	ne	Prima	ryEmai	Exten	nalData	Embedo	dedDa	Embed	dedDa	ataE
2	John	Doe			John_	Doe@	email.o	:om					
3													
4													
5													
6													
7													
8													
9													
10													
11													
12													
13													
14													
15													
-													

5. Give your file a name, and set the File Type to CSV or Comma Separated Values.

6. In the **Import From a File** pop-up box, select **Choose File**. Import/Update From a File



- 7. Select your file and click **Open**. The file must be closed on your computer for it to import successfully into Qualtrics.
- 8. Check the **Verify Fields** preview of your panel to ensure that Qualtrics is recognizing it properly.

deleter a cav File			
(Choose File) exa	mplepanel.csv Relo	ad) Import Options	
Verify Fields	(4 Total)		
FirstName	LastName	Email	ExternalRefe
John	Doe	John_Doe@enail.com	
John Mary	Doe Smith	John_Dom@email.com msmith@company.com	
John Mary Jerry	Doe Smith Rio	John_Doe@enail.com msmith@company.com jrio@test.com	

9. If the fields are not showing up as a table in the **Verify Fields** preview, select **Import Options** and change the **Delimiter** and **Enclosure** until the **Verify Fields** preview displays properly.

## 10. Select Import.

No first note must have the first names to reach codures.     Substrates where yound? Calch names have a permany sense statistics: (Divati), All shart first are options of the sense sense in the sense sense sense in the sense sense in the sense sense sense sense in the sense s	
Select a CBV File Delenter Exclosure (Descent Tile) exempliquent con (Reline) Comma C (	
/erify Fields (4 Total) Andure 1) [Jackare 1] [Inal 1] [Inanulfationse 1] [Inanulfationse 1]	Mart 1
nte ne noti_netmail.com	
fary Ballin sanithfrongasy.com	
Nyan Lindhurgh riindhurgh/muil.out	-
X Confer	S arrest

Import panel members from existing survey data

1. Follow the steps for Create New Panel, and select to Import From a Survey.



2. Select whether you want to **Update Recipients** (if some of your survey participants are already in the panel) or **Create New Recipients** (if you are building a new panel or adding to an existing one).

rease select import type: Please select reate New Recipients : Demo Survey sponse Date Range: (may leave blank) To	a survey:	
Question	Question Field	Field
(	(	First Name
	( 1)	Last Name
· · · ·		

- 3. Select a survey you wish to use for your panel information and choose a **Response Date Range** if desired.
- 4. If creating new participants, choose which **Question** and which **Question Field** will represent the **First Name**, **Last Name**, and **Email** in the panel.

Questic	41	Question Field	Field	
Which survey software	do you cun 🛊	Qualitrics Response 1	First Name	
Which survey software	de you cun 🔅	✓ Qualtrics Response	ast Name	
	*)	Surveys Z Response Other Response Other Text Entry Response	Omail	
ciate recipients with the note that only response	e responses. e NOT already a	associated with a panel member	or will be imported.	

5. If updating existing panel members, also specify which fields the **Question** and **Question Field** should be saved as in the panel. Note that if you are updating panel members, you have to distribute the survey to the panel you are wanting to update.

If you want to know anything about mailings through Qualtrics, this is the page for you. You can track previous mailings, see who took the survey, and send a reminder or thank you message.

## **View Results**

## To access and create Reports:

1. Go to the **View Results** tab and open the **View Reports** page.



2. If prompted, select which survey you would like to work with.

		Select a Survey Click on the name of the survey to view	the results.	
All	Surveys (5)	1	Survey Se	arch
	Active	Harte	Creation Date	Modified
				My Surveys
*		Notified or allegis, 2011	May 19	June 25
		Basic Questions (test) Modified on: Jun 20, 2011	May 19	June 25
÷		Industry Survey (test) Modified on Jun 25, 2011	June 10	June 25
		Introduction Survey Modified on: Jan 26, 2011	June 20	June 25
		Scoring Survey	June 24	June 24

3. Select a Report to view.



- To open the default report for your survey, click **Initial Report**.
- To create a new report, click Create a New Report.
- To delete a report, click **Delete** next to your report name.

The Responses page has all of the raw responses to your survey. From here you can:

- View individual responses.
- Create a PDF of each.
- Close responses in progress.
- Create retake links.
- Delete responses.

## **To View Responses:**

Select one of the following tabs in the **Responses** section to view responses:

1. **Recorded Responses**: Responses that are closed and saved to your data set will be available here. These include all complete responses, and any incomplete responses that are no longer available for the participant to finish. Visit the <u>Recorded Responses</u> page for more information.



2. **Responses in Progress**: Responses that are still active. Participants are either currently taking the survey, or they have received a link that is still open, but their response is not yet finished. Visit the <u>Responses In Progress</u> page for more information.

My Surveys	Create Survey	Edit Survey	Distribute Survey	View Results
View Reports	Responses	Bownload Da	ita Cross T	abulation
Get Help	k a Question			
Recorded Re	esponses	Responses in	Progress	
	Response Searc	th Criteria		
	Email A	Address:		

## **Download Data**

Download your raw data by going to the **Download Data** page (View Results tab) and selecting the file type you would like to download. The available file types are **.CSV**, **SPSS**, **Fixed Field Text**, **XML**, **and HTML**. You can save and open the file on your computer, except HTML, which will just open a table in your browser.

Internet Explorer may prevent the download, displaying a yellow bar at the top of the page. Click on this bar to give the browser permission to download the file. The page may reload, in which case you will need to re-click the download option.

Format:	
	CSV
<b>≊</b> a,	This is a Comma Separated Values format of the raw data that can be easily imported into Excel, Access, or other programs. Each value in the response is separated by a comma, and each response is separated by a newline character.
	SPSS
SPSS	Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS) is one of the most widely used software packages for survey analysis. This is an SPSS sav data file with Download sPSS Syntax File         Download       Options         Download SPSS.sav File       String Width: Medium - 2,000 +
	Elvad Elald Tave
	This is a fixed-field-length format. A separate data map file specifies data offsets for various columns. Download Data Map Only Download fixed-field response data (.bxt) and associated data map as a .zip Column Widths: Short +
	XML
Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charles Charle	This is the Extensible Markup Language (XML) format of the raw data, which is a general purpose markup language for easy interpretation.
	HTML
	This is a HyperText Markup Language format of the raw data. This format shows the data in one large table when opened by a web browser.
Note: Down Note: Excel download tf	loading the data does not delete the responses from the database. 2003 (and earlier) is limited to 256 columns and 65,536 rows. Excel 2007 (and later) supports 16,384 columns and 1,048,676 rows. If your data exceeds these limits, you will have to te data in multiple sets.

## .CSV (Comma Separated Values)

- A text file type that can be opened in Microsoft Excel. Excel is a convenient program for viewing data. From an Excel file, a .CSV file can be converted and viewed in other statistical modeling software.
- Excel 2003 has a column limit of 256 columns. Some surveys may have more variables than this. The data will be stored in the csv file, but cannot be displayed in Excel 2003. If this is the case, you will need to find another program to view the data (SPSS, SAS, STATA, Excel 2007).

## <u>SPSS</u>

- To download an SPSS file, navigate to the SPSS section and click **Download SPSS .sav** File.
- If desired, you can specify the String Width or Download the SPSS Syntax file.

#### Fixed Field Text

Fixed Field Text format is designed to work with many external cross tabulation tools. It is a flat file format and is the one most often used for these tools. This was designed to better meet the special needs of our market research clients.

<u>XML</u>

XML is used for putting your data into a database. This is the Extensible Markup Language (XML) format of the raw data, which is a general purpose markup language for easy interpretation.

<u>HTML</u>

This is a HyperText Markup Language format of the raw data. This format shows the data in one large table when opened by a web browser.

**Uploaded Files** 

2.

If you used the File Upload question type in your survey, use this option to download all respondent-uploaded files at once in a .zip file.

## **Create a new Cross Tabulation**

1. Open the Cross Tabulation page in the View Results tab.

A.	Baltrics.com"				
My Surveys	Create Survey	Edit Survey	Distribute Survey	View Results	Polis Lib
View Reports	Responses	Download D	ata Cross	Teputation	
Get Help	oka Guerlin				
Demo Se Cross Tabula	urvey ation				
Create a new	Cross Tabulatio	n			
lick the	e Create	a new C	Cross Tab	oulation i	con.



3. Check the appropriate boxes in the **Banner** and **Stub** columns to choose which questions will be the columns and rows in your Cross Tabulation.



4. If necessary, select **Use Embedded Data** to include <u>Embedded Data</u> fields as rows or columns in your tabulations.

es Tabulation Name: Demo Sun	vey Cross Tabulation(1)	
Barner (Column)	0846 (Post)	
×.	0	Which survey software to you currently use?
0	2	What is your age? (U.S. Gensus 7 Calegories)
	×.	What is your status?
a Emberidad Data		
and a second second second	itur orosa tabulation, you mu	at enter all values you would like to include for each embedded dats field in the provided text area, one
		Embedded Data Flaid: Position

5. If you are using Embedded Data fields, check the appropriate boxes in the **Banner** and **Stub** columns, and either enter the field values to be included in the tabulation in the **Embedded Data Field** text box, or click **Autofill** to bring in all values.

Barner (Solumi)	0 Biole (Firm)	
×.	0	Which survey software-do you currently use?
0	×.	What is your age? (U.S. Census 7 Categories)
0	£	What is your status?
før to use embedded dele in	your orose tabulation, you mu	at enter ef values you would like to include for each embedded date field in the provided last area,
fer to use ambedded data in	your cross tabulation, you mu	at enter all values you would Alla to include for each embedded data field in the provided faut area. Embedded Data Field - Poelicon

6. Select Create Cross Tabulation.

Get Malp . And a Granting		Current Burray =
Demo Survey Cross Tabulation		And a Cran, Smither     Ander     Ande
Cross Tabulation Name Damo Bur	nay Cross Tabulation(1)	
Citeres (intern)	O Real Proved	
		Setuat Gaustion Book
	0	Which survey software do you currently use?
0		What is your age? (J.B. Densus ? Categories)
0	8	Web you cann?
Uni Embeddet Dep		Entexted late
in under to use embedded deta in	your once initializin, you my	al arter al values pix moulit like to include for anal-antipublici data field in the provision loof area, one value per line
	G	Disk with the Parket Disk without the mean on yor line Tablet Addit of waters for 12 willow minimal data waters from the survey
Dia Jawas		Gener (View Inner Viewen

# Library

If you use similar surveys or questions repeatedly, Qualtrics can store templates of entire surveys or questions in the library making them accessible at anytime in any survey.

Saving a Survey to the Library

- 1. Under the My Surveys tab, select the copy survey icon.
- 2. When prompted select that you wish to copy the survey to the library.
- 3. Give the survey a name and click on the copy button.

## **Using a Survey from the Library**

- 1. Click the **Create Survey** tab.
- 2. Select the **Survey Library** option.
- 3. In the drill down boxes, find your library and your survey.
- 4. Click Create Survey.
- 5. The Survey will appear in the **Edit Survey** tab from the library.

#### **Using a Question from the Library**

- 1. At the bottom of an existing block, click on **Copy Items From**.
- 2. Select the library/survey you would like to bring the question in from.

## **The Qualtrics Library**

The Qualtrics Library has many templates available for users. Use these to learn the types of surveys that can be created in any given situation.

#### **Group Library**

Users who belong to a brand and a group within that brand have the option of saving things to the group library. This gives all members of the group access to your surveys, questions, graphics, panels, or anything saved to the group library.